
 

WASATCH FRONT REGIONAL COUNCIL 
Meeting of October 27, 2016 

 

AGENDA 

There will be a meeting of the Wasatch Front Regional Council on Thursday, October 27, 2016 
at 2:00 p.m. in the WFRC offices located at 295 North Jimmy Doolittle Road, Salt Lake City, 
Utah. The agenda for the meeting will be as follows: 
 
 
1. Consent Agenda (Mayor Dolan) 

a. ACTION: Minutes of the WFRC meeting held August 25, 2016 
b. ACTION: Financial statements and check registers for July, August and September 2016 

and Budget/Expenditure Report  
 

2. Chairman’s Report (Mayor Dolan) 
a. Information: Community Spotlight – South Davis County  
b. ACTION: WFRC Nominating Committee 

 
3. Public Comment 

 
4. Budget Committee (Councilmember Jensen) 

a. ACTION: Acceptance of Audit Report for FY16 
b. PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION: FY17 Budget and Work Program Amendments 

 
5. Regional Growth Committee (RGC) (Commissioner Petroff) 

a. ACTION: Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Goals 
b. Information: Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and RTP Scenarios 
 

6. Transportation Committee (Trans Com) (Mayor Applegarth) 
a. ACTION: Board Modifications to the 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

 
7. Active Transportation Committee (ATC) Report (Mayor Caldwell) 
 
8. Air Quality Committee (AQC) Report (Mayor Seghini) 
 
9. Executive Director’s Report (Andrew Gruber) 
 
10. Other Business 
 
 
Upcoming events: 
• UDOT Annual Conference – November 1-3 
• UAC Annual Convention – November 16-18 

 
 
NOTE: Meeting material located at www.wfrc.org 
 
 
 
 
Public participation is solicited without regard to age, sex, disability, race, color or national origin. Persons who require 
translation for a meeting should contact the WFRC’s Title VI Administrator at 801-363-4250 or sam@wfrc.org at least 72 hours 
in advance. 
 
Se solicita la participación del público, sin importar la edad el sexo, la discapacidad, la raza, color o nacionalidad.  Personas 
que requieren servicios de traducción deben contactar a WFRC’s Administrador de Titulo VI al teléfono 801-363-4250 o 
sam@wfrc.org por lo menos 72 horas antes de la reunión. 
 

http://www.wfrc.org/


 
DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
Wasatch Front Regional Council 

Meeting of August 25, 2016 
 
Mayor Tom Dolan, Chairman, called the meeting of the Wasatch Front Regional Council to 
order at 2:04 p.m. in the offices of the Wasatch Front Regional Council located at 295 North 
Jimmy Doolittle Road, Salt Lake City, Utah.  
 
Members Present 

*Mark Allen  Mayor, Washington Terrace 
*Bill Applegarth  Mayor, Riverton City 
*Len Arave  Mayor, North Salt Lake 
*Jerry Benson  Utah Transit Authority 
*Carlos Braceras  UDOT 
*Mike Caldwell  Mayor, Ogden City 
*Karen Cronin  Mayor, Perry City 
*Kelvyn Cullimore  Mayor, Cottonwood Heights 
Evan Curtis  Governor’s Office 
Brad Dee  Utah House of Representatives 
*Tom Dolan  Mayor, Sandy City 
*Kerry Gibson  Commissioner, Weber County 
Andrew Gruber  Executive Director, WFRC  
*Brent Marshall  Mayor, Grantsville City 
*Bret Millburn  Commissioner, Davis County 
*JoAnn Seghini  Mayor, Midvale City 
*Derk Timothy  Mayor, Bluffdale City 
 

Alternate Members Present 
 Ryan Beck  Envision Utah 
 Carlton Christensen  Salt Lake County 
 *James Ebert  Commissioner, Weber County 
 *Carmen Freeman  Mayor, Herriman City 
 Beth Holbrook  Utah League of Cities and Towns 
 *Tammy Long  Mayor, South Weber City 
 
Others Present  

Bryan Adams  UDOT 
John Barber  Councilmember, Morgan County 
Andrea Bohmholdt  AECOM 
Nicholl Bourdeaux  Utah Transit Authority 
Joyce Brown  Councilmember, Layton City 
*Dirk Burton  Councilman, West Jordan  
Steve Call  FHWA 
Orrin Hatch  Senator, United States Senate 
John Hiskey  Sandy City 
Linda Johnson  Breathe Utah 
Nathan Lee  UDOT 
David Litvak  Deputy Chief of Staff, Salt Lake City Mayor’s Office 
Ivan Marrero  FHWA 
Barry McLerran  Congresswoman Mia Love 
Regina Nelson  Tooele Co Sheriff’s Office / 911 Advisory Committee 
Eric Parry  UCA – 911 Division 
*Matt Sibul  Utah Transit Authority   



WFRC Minutes 
August 25, 2016 
Page 2 
 

Jerry Stevenson  Senator, Utah State Senate 
Nick Wyatt Senator Orrin Hatch’s Office 
Loveit Baumgardner  WFRC 
Wayne Bennion  WFRC 
Kip Billings  WFRC 
Renae Bodily  WFRC 
Julia Collins  WFRC 
LaNiece Davenport WFRC 
Scott Festin WFRC 
Katie Gerard WFRC 
Amber Gonzales WFRC 
Ned Hacker WFRC 
Scott Hess WFRC 
Roman Huerta WFRC 
Jory Johner WFRC 
Pam Jorgensen  WFRC 
Ted Knowlton WFRC 
Jon Larsen WFRC 
Heather McLaughlin-Kolb WFRC 
Andrea Pearson WFRC 

 Suzie Swim WFRC 
 Megan Townsend WFRC 

Ben Wuthrich WFRC 
      Muriel Xochimitl             WFRC 
 
*indicates Voting Member   
Welcome  
Mayor Tom Dolan, Council chair, welcomed Wasatch Front Regional Council members and 
guests and introductions were made.   
Consent Agenda  
ACTION: Minutes  
Mayor Carmen Freeman moved to approve the minutes of the WFRC meeting held March 24, 
2016 and Mayor Brent Marshall seconded the motion. The minutes were accepted unanimously.  
 
ACTION: Financial Statements  
Mayor Brent Marshall moved to approve the Financial Statements and Check Registers for 
April, May and June of 2016 and Budget/Expenditure Report as of June 30, 2016. 
Commissioner Bret Millburn seconded the motion and they were accepted unanimously. 
 
Public Comment 
Mayor Dolan opened the meeting up to public comment. Regina Nelson, Tooele County 
Sheriff’s Office and 911 Advisory Committee, and Eric Parry, Program Manager with the State 
of Utah 911 Program, informed the Council that they are willing to bring information regarding 
this project to other city and county meetings, as needed. The Council will arrange for their 
presentation to be a part of a future Council meeting.  
Chairman’s Report 
Information: Community Spotlight – Weber County 
Local elected officials from Weber County, Mayor Mike Caldwell, Commissioners Kerry Gibson 
and James Ebert shared information about Weber County, including how it is addressing growth 
and promoting economic development, as well as how the area is meeting its transportation 
needs and priorities. 
 



WFRC Minutes 
August 25, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Information: Remarks from U.S. Senator Orrin Hatch 
U.S. Senator Orrin Hatch attended a portion of the Wasatch Front Regional Council meeting 
and offered remarks focusing on transportation funding and policy. He engaged in a brief 
question and answer period with those attending. 
 
Information: Point of the Mountain  
Jerry Stevenson, Utah Senator, reported that the Point of the Mountain Commission is making 
progress in coordinating a meeting for the stakeholder entities in order to discuss the challenges 
of addressing the growth in that area of the Wasatch Front.  
 
Information: WFRC FY’16 Activities and Accomplishments 
Andrew Gruber, WFRC, reiterated the Wasatch Front Regional Council Mission Statement and 
then reported on the previously adopted goals and priorities for FY’16. These goals, which 
provided direction regarding areas of focus for this past year, are:  
 

1- Begin development of the 2019-2050 Regional Transportation Plan, Utah’s Unified 
Transportation Plan, and updated Wasatch Choice land use and development vision. 

2- Support efforts to fund the needs identified in the 2015-2040 Utah’s Unified 
Transportation Plan. 

3- Further develop, integrate and promote WFRC programs that benefit local communities. 
4- Strive for organizational excellence including maximizing employee job satisfaction and 

performance. 
 

With the help and support of member communities, WFRC was able to make significant 
progress towards accomplishing their FY’16 goals. Mr. Gruber thanked our members for their 
hard work and dedication to these efforts. Included in the packet is an executive summary, as 
well as the full report, entitled “FY’16 Activities & Accomplishments Report.”  
 
ACTION: WFRC FY’17 Goals and Priorities 
Mr. Gruber then presented the proposed set of goals and priorities to help shape the activities of 
WFRC for the next year. These goals were developed through review of WFRC’s adopted 
Mission & Roles, reflection on the agency activities and accomplishments for the previous year, 
and a collaborative and full discussion among the WFRC staff, in consultation with the WFRC 
Executive Committee. The following are DRAFT goals and priority areas for WFRC in FY’17, 
and there is a summary included in the packet materials. Many of these items reflect a 
continuation of ongoing agency priorities. This is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all of 
WFRC’s activities. The WFRC FY’17 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), adopted by the 
Regional Council at its meeting in May 2016, comprehensively lists all of WFRC’s activities. 
 

1- Collaboratively develop long- and short-range plans and programs, and assist local 
communities to implement those plans. 

2- Integrate the consideration of transportation, land use, and economic development 
through a performance-based approach. 

3- Support transportation policy-making. 
4- Strive for organizational excellence. 

 
The members of the WFRC Executive Committee have reviewed these items and, along with 
WFRC staff, are submitting them for the Council’s review, discussion and consideration for 
approval at this Council meeting. 
 
Commissioner Kerry Gibson moved to approve the WFRC goals for FY2017 and Mayor Mark 
Allen seconded the motion. The vote to approve was unanimous. 

Information: Overview of WFRC Programs for Local Governments 
The Wasatch Front Regional Council administers six programs that provide resources for local 
governments. These programs include: 



WFRC Minutes 
August 25, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
• Wasatch Front Economic Development District (WFEDD) 
• Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
• Transportation and Land Use Connection (TLC) 
• Surface Transportation Program (STP) 
• Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 
• Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 
 
Funding program application deadlines were discussed and further information will be 
forthcoming via email. Information sheets regarding the programs were included in the packet. 
 
ACTION: Mountain Accord Interlocal Agreement 
Mayor Tom Dolan gave a brief update regarding the Mountain Accord Interlocal Agreement. The 
process is well underway to create the Central Wasatch Commission (CWC). In order to 
implement the principles and actions of the Mountain Accord, the CWC is being formed by 
interlocal agreement and includes the following entities: Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, 
Cottonwood Heights and Sandy City. The CWC will coordinate and oversee the Mountain 
Accord effort, including assuming responsibility for budgeting, accounting and contracting. As 
such, the two Mountain Accord contracts currently held by WFRC will be transferred and 
assigned to the CWC. That assignment will be effectuated through another interlocal agreement 
to which WFRC will be a party, the Mountain Accord Interlocal Assignment, Assumption and 
Consent Agreement. With the transfer of the contracts to the CWC, WFRC will also transfer any 
funding remaining for these contracts, pending final approval of the transfer from UTA and the 
Governor’s Office of Economic Development. The budgetary impacts of this transfer of funding 
will be reflected in subsequent amendments to the WFRC budget. 
 
Mayor Kelvyn Cullimore made a motion to authorize WFRC to be a Party to the Interlocal 
Assignment, Assumption & Consent Agreement, pending minor revisions agreed to by the 
Parties to the Agreement. The motion was seconded by Mayor Carmen Freeman and the voting 
in the affirmative was unanimous.  
Regional Growth Committee 
Mayor Karin Cronin, on behalf of Commissioner Petroff, briefly reviewed the outcomes of the 
Regional Growth Committee (RGC) meeting held on August 18, 2016  
ACTION: 2015-2040 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Amendment #2 
Jory Johner, WFRC, reported that WFRC staff has received requests to amend the 2015-2040 
RTP to incorporate the changes described in-depth in the packet materials. Projects within 
Amendment 2 were presented to the RGC’s Technical Advisory Committees and the respective 
county’s Council of Governments (COGs). On May 19, the RGC approved a formal public 
comment period for Amendment 2, which took place from May 23, 2016 to June 24, 2016. The 
WFRC staff has analyzed the potential financial implications of these projects and feels that the 
RTP is able to maintain its fiscal constraint while accommodating construction of these projects 
in Phase 1 (2015-2024).  Further, the WFRC staff has reviewed the air quality impacts to ensure 
that all applicable air quality conformity requirements are met.  
 
Commissioner James Ebert moved to approve Amendment 2 to the 2015-2040 RTP, with the 
exception of the portion of Redwood Road project north of 12600 South (which requires further 
study and review) and Mayor Mike Caldwell seconded the motion. The voting was unanimous to 
approve. 
 
Information: Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) update 
Ted Knowlton, WFRC presented information about the Regional Transportation Plan. The RTP 
is the region’s shared blueprint for regional transportation. The process to develop the RTP 
spans four years and is a collaborative effort of communities, stakeholders, and transportation 
agencies (among others) that is convened and technically supported by WFRC. Wasatch 



WFRC Minutes 
August 25, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Choice 2040 has been the region’s shared vision for coordinated growth, infrastructure, and 
open space.  Over the next few years, the RTP and the Vision will be developed jointly and are 
being referred to as “Wasatch Choice 2050: Vision and RTP.”  
Information: WFRC efforts to integrate economic development 
LaNiece Davenport, WFRC, shared the three key strategies that the WFRC is using to ensure 
economic development is integrated into our short and long range planning. They are:  
 

1 Coordinate Transportation Investments with Economic Clusters 
2 Coordinate Transportation Investments to Improve Access to Opportunity 
3 Ensure Fiscal Sustainability through Efficient Growth and Infrastructure Investments 

 
The Wasatch Front Regional Council staff and partners work to strengthen our economy by 
focusing on the interaction of transportation, land use, and economic development. 

Transportation Committee (Trans Com) 
Mayor Bill Applegarth informed the Council of three Action Items that were discussed in the 
Trans Com meeting held on August 18, 2016.  
ACTION: Board Modifications to the 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program  
Ben Wuthrich, WFRC, reported that WFRC received requests to modify the current 2016-2021 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The modification requires action from the 
Transportation Commission and Wasatch Front Regional Council, but does not require a new 
air quality conformity analysis or a 30-day public comment period. He referred members to the 
packet for detailed information on Amendment Nine. 
 
• 1500 South; 1350 West to 1100 West – Expand Project Scope to include street transitions, 
drainage and railroad crossing features. Funding to remain the same at $2,753,641. 
• 5300 South and Commerce Drive – New Project to provide an additional westbound 
through lane that feeds the left turn lane to the southbound I-15 on-ramp. New funding in the 
amount of $600,000. 
• Recreational Trails – Projects selected and administered through the Utah State Parks 
and Recreation Division. Funds are used to provide and maintain trails for motorized and non-
motorized recreational uses, including trailside, trailhead facilities, and provisions to facilitate 
access for people with disabilities. For the 2017 Program, Utah has 40 projects totaling 
$1,490,393 in federal aid funds; eight of those projects (totaling $202,766) are in the WFRC 
area. 
 
Mayor Carmen Freeman moved to approve the resolution to modify the 2016-2021 TIP as 
requested. Mayor Brent Marshall seconded the motion and the voting was unanimous. 
 
ACTION: 2017-2022 TIP 
Mr. Wuthrich then presented information regarding the 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) for approval, in order to move the transportation projects forward. A draft 2017-
2022 TIP was reviewed by Trans Com in June (as delegated by the Regional Council) and 
made available for public review.  An analysis of the TIP completed by the WFRC staff shows 
that the 2017-2022 TIP conforms to the state air quality plans. The public comment period 
extended from June 25 through August 6, 2016 and with the utilization of the new interactive 
map, produced collaboratively by WFRC and UDOT, was very successful. A list of the 
comments with respective responses was included in the packet and a summary of the 
comments and responses has been made available. 
 
Mayor Bill Applegarth moved to approve the resolution to recommend the 2017-2022 TIP as 
requested.  Mayor Karen Cronin seconded the motion and the voting was unanimous. 
 
 
ACTION: Self-Certification of Planning Process 



WFRC Minutes 
August 25, 2016 
Page 6 
 
Mayor Applegarth then directed attention to the draft Resolution for the Urban Transportation 
Planning Process Certification exhibit included in the packet. He stated that each year when the 
Regional Council approves the Transportation Improvement Program, WFRC and UDOT also 
need to certify that the transportation planning process meets all federal planning requirements. 
The staff at WFRC, UDOT, and UTA have worked together to confirm that the federal 
requirements are being met.  
 
Mayor Bill Applegarth moved that the resolution be approved as requested. Mayor Carmen 
Freeman seconded the motion and the voting was unanimous.  
Air Quality Committee Report 
Mayor JoAnn Seghini provided an update on the Air Quality Committee.  
 
The August 2016 AQC meeting was cancelled; however, Bryce Bird, with the Department of Air 
Quality, presented an update on air quality issues during the August 18, 2016 Regional Growth 
Committee. The Wasatch Front’s failure to meet the PM2.5 standards by 2014 means that the 
EPA will likely re-designate most of the Wasatch Front from a “moderate” to a “serious” non-
attainment area for PM2.5. A new, more aggressive State Implementation Plan for controlling 
PM2.5 related emissions will be required to show attainment of the standard by 2019. The entire 
Wasatch Front, with the exception of Brigham City, exceeds the ozone standard based on the 
three most recent years of data. In coming years, a State Implementation Plan for controlling 
ozone will also be required.  
 
Volkswagen agreed to a $10 billion settlement regarding falsified emission testing for its small 
diesel vehicles.  Utah will receive $32 million of this settlement to be used for cleaner vehicles 
for fleets, airports, and freight operations. 
 
Salt Lake Council of Governments also unanimously supported a consideration for the 
Legislature to again revisit the fireworks standards for Utah. During the summer holidays, there 
are many safety-related fire issues with the standards as they are now. 

 
Active Transportation Committee Report 
Mayor Mike Caldwell noted the following items regarding the Active Transportation Committee.  
 
The ATC heard from UTA about the recent $20 million TIGER grant award. The presentation 
focused on the types of projects that were approved in the grant, and allowed the committee 
members a chance to ask questions about how the funding will be administered.  
 
Prior to the 2017 legislative session, WFRC will be preparing an annual report on key 
performance measures including funding, counts, safety, air quality, and active transportation 
plans for the Wasatch Front. 
 
Mayor Caldwell also discussed the success of the Tour of Utah that occurred August 1-7, 2016. 
This is a great event that helps highlight active transportation, and influence future generations 
of cyclists. He also advocated attending the Mobile Active Transportation Tour to be held on 
September 15 in the afternoon as part of the Utah League of Cities and Towns Conference. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
Andrew Gruber, WFRC, introduced Matthew Silski, the new GIS employee at Wasatch Front 
Regional Council.  
Other Business 
Mayor Tom Dolan asked if there were any other items to discuss. With no further business, 
Mayor Brent Marshall moved that the meeting be adjourned at 4:00pm. Mayor Len Arave 
seconded the motion and the voting was unanimous. 
  
 
A recording of this meeting, as well as meeting packet materials, may be found on the WFRC website at www.wfrc.org 

http://www.wfrc.org/


















7/1/2016

6/30/2017

Expenditure Budget Expended Balance %

As approved May 26,2016 9/30/2016 Unspent Expended

Salaries/Employee Benefits 3,407,605 844,734 2,562,871 25%

Contractual 2,224,250 449,774 1,774,476 20%

Audit and Accounting 26,883 9,741 17,142 1 36%

Dues and Subscriptions 14,579 7,585 6,994 1 52%

Equipment Depreciation 31,021 8,570 22,451 28%

Equipment Maintenance 32,496 2,850 29,646 9%

Insurance 17,000 3,868 13,132 23%

Legal 5,000 0 5,000 0%

Printing & Publication 24,487 475 24,012 2%

Rent 250,000 17,868 232,132 7%

Building Operation/R & M 84,203 16,059 68,144 19%

Supplies/Software & Licenses 126,710 39,225 87,485 1 31%

Telephone/Data 32,136 8,134 24,002 25%

Travel 68,222 18,578 49,644 27%

Training 40,500 7,326 33,174 18%

Equipment Purchase 45,000 0 45,000 0%

Amounts expected to carry forward into next FY 38,772 0 38,772 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,468,865 1,434,788 5,034,077 22%

Excluding Carry Forward 6,430,093 1,434,788 4,995,305 22%

% Time Expended 25%

Program Budget Expended Balance %

As approved May 26,2016 9/30/2016 Unspent Expended

Consolidated Transportation Planning Grant 3,707,946 901,629 2,806,317 24%

UTA Project Support 78,088 16,341 61,747 21%

Tooele Valley RPO 10,000 0 10,000 0%

Local Government Service 142,912 5,227 137,685 4%

SL Corridor Preservation 25,628 3,982 21,646 16%

Salt Lake County COG 72,290 16,504 55,786 23%

Community Impact Board $2K 2,000 240 1,760 12%

Economic Development 120,000 40,056 79,944 33%

CDBG - Tooele 50,000 9,077 40,923 18%

Transportation and Land Use Connection 1,100,000 33,558 1,066,442 3%

Tooele Valley RTP Update 0 525 -525

Mobility Management 10,000 229 9,771 2%

Utah State Legislative Consultant 50,000 6,000 44,000 12%

Model Development - MAG 55,000 2,442 52,558 4%

GPI Demographic Data 0 1,135 -1,135

Mountain Accord Phase II 1,000,000 390,876 609,124 39%

Joint Planning Studies 0 4,649 -4,649

Oquirrh Connection Study 0 2,318 -2,318

Equipment Purchases 45,000 45,000 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,468,865 1,434,788 5,034,077 22%

Wasatch Front Regional Council FY 2017

Budget/Expense Report

Expenditure by Function

Expenditure by Program



Footnotes to the Budget/Expense Report 

September 30, 2016 

 

In this report 25% of the fiscal year (time) has passed.  Of the total amount budgeted for the year 22% 

was expended through the end of September 2016.  The budget in this report is the budget that was 

approved on May 26, 2016 but excludes fiscal year end entries to the fund balance.  At the fund level 

the Council records expenditures for equipment purchases, principal & interest payments on the bonds 

used to purchase the building, and bank fees  The Council records revenue when depreciation and bond 

interest are charged to the programs as rent and equipment usage fees and when interest is earned on 

funds not immediately needed for operations.  At the end of the fiscal year the net effect of those 

transactions represent a change to the fund balance.    

This information contained in this report is useful in that it shows rates of expenditure by line item and 

by program and allows the Council and staff to analyze rates of expenditure and progress of the various 

programs and address any areas of concern.  It is not unusual for budget spent versus time to show 

variations.  Some expenses such as audit fees, association dues and software license fees (footnote 1 on 

the Budget/Expense table) are paid at the beginning of the fiscal year causing the percentage of budget 

spent versus time expended to go up.  However, as the year progresses that percentage drops and the 

line item and program will finish the year within budget.   

Variances in the rate of expenditure by program are considered normal and include some programs that 

are expected to carry forward into the next fiscal year.   

 



DATE:  
AGENDA ITEM: 
SUBJECT:  
PREPARED BY: 

August 16, 2016 
2a 
Information: Community Spotlight – South Davis County 
Andrew Gruber 

BACKGROUND: 

The Wasatch Front Regional Council periodically highlights communities in our region to share 
their activities, challenges, projects, or innovative approaches to addressing growth and 
development, including transportation, land use, and economic development. 

At the Wasatch Front Regional Council meeting, local elected officials from South Davis County, 
including mayors and County Commissioners, will share information about South Davis County, 
including how it is addressing growth and promoting economic development, as well as its 
transportation needs and priorities.  

RECOMMENDATION:  
This item is for information only. 

CONTACT PERSON:  
Andrew Gruber  801-824-0055 

EXHIBIT: 
None 



DATE:  
AGENDA ITEM: 
SUBJECT:  
PREPARED BY: 

October 11, 2016 
2b 
ACTION: WFRC Nominating Committee 
Andrew Gruber 

BACKGROUND: 

Pursuant to the WFRC Bylaws, at the last meeting in even-numbered years the 
Chairman appoints a nominating committee to recruit and nominate the Council Chair 
and Vice Chair. The nominating committee includes one representative from each of the 
six WFRC counties. 

The nominating committee may also make recommendations to the Chair for 
appointments to other committees including the Regional Growth Committee, 
Transportation Committee, and Budget Committee. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Chairman appoints a nominating committee. 

CONTACT PERSON:  

Mayor Tom Dolan, Sandy City, 801-568-7257, cedwards@sandy.utah.gov 
Andrew Gruber, WFRC, 801-824-0055, agruber@wfrc.org 



DATE:  October 27, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM: 4a 
SUBJECT: ACTION: Acceptance of the FY’16 Audit Report 
PREPARED BY: Loveit Baumgardner 

BACKGROUND: 

An annual audit of the Council’s financial records was performed and a final draft of the report 
issued as a result of that audit is included herein.  The Budget Committee met with Tim Rees from 
the auditing firm of Karren Hendrix Stagg & Allen on October 13, 2016 to review the final draft of 
the audit report.   

The auditors have issued an unqualified opinion.  A summary of the audit results may be found 
on page 44 of the report.  Tim Rees will be available to address any questions or concerns of the 
Council.   

The final audit report will be submitted to those agencies requiring a copy of the report within 180 
days of the close of the fiscal year.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

The WFRC Budget Committee and staff recommend that the Council take action “to accept the 
WFRC FY’16 Audit Report as presented.” 

CONTACT PERSON: 

Loveit Baumgardner (801) 363-4250 ext 1102 

EXHIBITS: 

Wasatch Front Regional Council Financial Statements with Independent Auditors’ Report for the 
Year Ended June 30, 2016. 











































































































 

 
DATE:   October 27, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM: 4b 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION:  Amend FY’17 Budget and Unified Planning 

Work Program (UPWP) 
PREPARED BY: Loveit Baumgardner 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As WFRC completed FY’16 and we reviewed the final expenditures, actual spending came in lower 
than budgeted by $920,579. This resulted mainly from spending on some contractual items that 
occurred more slowly than was anticipated or from items that were added to the FY’16 budget in the 
later months but did not begin work until FY’17. As a result, the amount of funds that carried forward 
from FY’16 into FY’17 was higher than was anticipated, resulting in an increase in the FY’17 budget as 
some spending shifts from FY’16 to FY’17.  
 
There are also two new funding sources reflected in the proposed amended FY’17 budget including:  
 

• $200,000 in additional local funding from the City of Herriman for the Oquirrh Connection Study 
(the work scope is summarized in the UPWP amendment attached).   

• $49,300 from the University of Utah Kem C. Gardner Policy Institute for collaborative 
demographic data development.    

 
The adjustments described above, along with a few minor changes in estimated expenditures, are 
reflected in the line items on the Expenditure by Function page. The adjustments also impact the 
projected carry-forward into FY’18, again reflecting on-going programs or multi-year projects that bridge 
the FY’17 and FY’18 years.   
 
The footnotes that accompany this proposed amended budget provide more detail on the changes to 
funding sources, expenditures by function and expenditures by program.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The WFRC Budget Committee and WFRC staff recommend that the Council take action “to amend the 
WFRC FY’17 Budget and Unified Planning Work Program as proposed.” 
 
CONTACT PERSON: 
 
Loveit Baumgardner (801) 363-4250 ext 1102  
  
EXHIBITS:   
 
Draft Amended Budget FY2017 with Footnotes 
Draft Amendment to FY2017 Unified Planning Work Program 
 
 



FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2017

Actual Budget as approved 5/26/16 Budget as proposed

Federal Sources:

  Federal Highway Administration - PL 1,591,786 1,936,812 2,494,204 29% 1

  Federal Highway Administration - STP 1,111,762 1,600,000 1,656,505 4% 1

  Federal Transit Administration 641,118 646,023 646,023 0%

  Dept. of Housing and Urban Development 48,854 50,000 50,000 0%

  Economic Development Administration 60,000 60,000 66,000 10% 2

    Total Federal Sources 3,453,520         4,292,835 4,912,732 14%

State Sources:

  Utah GOMB (CPG match) 140,000 140,000 140,000 0%

  Mountain Accord 718,925 1,000,000 1,281,076 28% 1

  Community Impact Board 252,000 2,000 2,000 0%

  UDOT - Tooele Valley RTP 5,002 0 3,197 100% 1

  UDOT - Joint Planning Studies 12,458 0 31,302 100% 1

  UDOT - Corridor Preservation SL County 12,849 25,628 25,628 0%

    Total State Sources 1,141,234 1,167,628 1,483,202 27%

Local Sources:

  Special Project Funds 649,962 537,291 918,745 71% 1,3,4,5

  Transit Sales Tax 135,634 121,147 121,147 0%

  Local Contribution 181,805 304,964 537,622 76% 1

  Interest Income 8,133 4,500 4,500 0%

  Total Local Sources 975,533            967,902 1,582,014 63%

    TOTAL SOURCES 5,570,286 6,428,365 7,977,949 24%

Draft - Amended

Wasatch Front Regional Council FY 2017 Budget

Source of Funds



Draft - Amended

Wasatch Front Regional Council FY 2017 Budget

Expenditure FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2017

Actual Budget as approved 5/26/16 Budget as proposed

Salaries/Employee Benefits 2,975,328 3,407,605 3,407,605 0%

Contractual 2,102,268 2,224,250 3,062,784 38% 5

Equipment Purchase (net) -8,110 13,979 13,979 0%

Equipment Maintenance 25,337 32,496 32,496 0%

Equipment Depreciation 31,986 31,021 31,021 0%

Rent 61,403 250,000 250,000 0%

Building Operation/R & M 49,070 84,203 84,203 0%

Travel 59,107 68,222 68,222 0%

Training 30,104 40,500 40,500 0%

Printing and Publication 3,359 24,487 24,487 0%

Supplies/Software & Licenses 153,252 126,710 126,710 0%

Telephone/Data 31,917 32,136 32,136 0%

Audit and Accounting 15,755 26,883 26,883 0%

Dues & Subscriptions 12,207 14,579 14,579 0%

Insurance 12,051 17,000 17,000 0%

Legal 6,340 5,000 5,000 0%

Bank Charges 1,352 1,300 1,300 0%

Debt service (net) 18,019 0 0 0%

Change in fund balance -10,460 -10,779 -10,779 0%

Total Expenditures 5,570,286 6,389,592 7,228,127 13%

Amounts expected to carry into next FY 38,773 749,822 6

TOTAL BUDGET 5,570,286 6,428,365 7,977,949 24%

Expenditure by Function



Draft - Amended

Wasatch Front Regional Council FY 2017 Budget

Program FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2017

Actual Budget as approved 5/26/16 Budget as proposed

Consolidated Transportation Planning Grant 3,174,279 3,707,946 4,322,887 17% 1

UTA Project Support 92,575 78,088 78,088 0%

Tooele Valley RPO  0 10,000 10,515 5% 1

Tooele Valley RTP Update 5,002 0 3,197 100% 1

Local Government Service 15,232 147,412 328,522 123% 1

Model Development (MAG) 53,355 55,000 55,000 0%

Salt Lake County Council of Governments 57,258 72,291 103,556 43% 1

Mobility Management 5,095 10,000 10,000 0%

CDBG - Tooele 45,135 50,000 50,000 0%

Community Impact Board 252,000 2,000 2,000 0%

Joint Planning Studies 49,658 0 39,302 100% 1

Economic Development 120,000 120,000 132,000 10% 2

Oquirrh Connection 0 0 200,000 100% 3

Gardner Policy Institute Demographic Data 0 0 49,300 100% 4

Corridor Preservation - Salt Lake County 12,847 25,628 25,628 0%

Utah State Legislative Consultant 50,000 50,000 50,000 0%

Mountain Accord 718,925 1,000,000 1,281,076 28% 1

Transportation & Land Use Connection 918,925 1,100,000 1,236,878 12% 1

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,570,286 6,428,365 7,977,949 24%

Expenditure by Program



Draft - Amended

Wasatch Front Regional Council FY 2017 Budget

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2017

County Actual Budget as approved 5/26/16 Budget as proposed

Box Elder, 1 voting member 12,533 12,533 12,533

Davis, 4 voting members 66,842 66,842 66,842

Morgan, 1 voting member 12,533 12,533 12,533

Salt Lake, 8 voting members 133,682 133,682 133,682

Tooele, 1 voting member 12,533 12,533 12,533

Weber, 4 voting members 66,842 66,842 66,842

TOTAL 304,965 304,965 304,965

Local Contributions



Wasatch Front Regional Council  

Draft FY’17 Amended Budget – October 27, 2016 

Footnotes 

 

1. These changes include amounts budgeted in FY’16 but not spent prior to fiscal year end or 

changes in estimated amounts that were anticipated to be carried forward from FY’16.  These 

changes reflect the multi-year nature of ongoing projects and many of these are expected to be 

completed in FY’17 or FY’18. 

 

2. Increase in funds from Economic Development Administration reflects actual grant received.  

Matching funds will come from existing sources. 

 

3. Includes $200,000 in funds from the City of Herriman for the Oquirrh Connection Study.  This 

study will examine the engineering and financial feasibility of establishing a direct paved 

roadway connection between the Tooele Valley and the Salt Lake Valley.  WFRC will use 

$180,000 of these funds to hire a consultant to assist with the study. 

 

4. Includes $49,300 from the University of Utah, Kem C. Gardner Policy Institute (GPI) for 

collaborative demographic data development.  This project will collaboratively develop data 

about current land use in Weber, Davis, Salt Lake and Utah counties and assist in the 

development of analytical tools that can be used to evaluate proposed development patterns in 

terms of data, parameters and variables.  WFRC will use $35,000 of these funds to hire a 

consultant to assist with the work. 

 

5. The bulk of the increase in contractual expenditures results from projects budgeted in FY’16 that 

are ongoing and expected to be completed in FY’17 and FY’18.  The increase also includes two 

new projects: the Oquirrh Connection Study and GPI collaborative demographic data 

development.  Contractual expenditures include: $145,000 for travel model development, 

$76,474 for communications and public outreach, $100,000 for the Wasatch Front Central 

Corridor Study, $50,000 for legislative consulting, $1,281,076 for Mountain Accord Phase II, 

$180,000 for the Oquirrh Connection Study, $35,000 for GPI collaborative demographic data 

development, $968,043 for the Transportation and Land Use Connection community projects, 

$5,636 for Provo/Orem BRT Study, $7,000 for the Bike Share Regionalization Study, $44,302 for 

the Street Connectivity Study, $15,000 for the First/Last Mile Study, $7,500 for key Travel 

Demand Model enhancements, $2,500 for the NTIC Effect of Compact Development on Traffic 

Study, $3,750 for the University of Utah high-level transit scenario analysis tool, $7,500 for the 

University of Utah modeling enhancement work, and $134,003 for other planning studies. 

 

6. The increase in amounts expected to carry forward into the next fiscal year is for projects that 

are not expected to be completed before the end of FY’17 and will continue in FY’18. 

 

 



AMENDMENT TO THE 

WASATCH FRONT REGIONAL COUNCIL 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 

 

FOR THE OGDEN-LAYTON AND  

SALT LAKE-WEST VALLEY URBANIZED AREAS 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2017 

 

OCTOBER, 2016 

 

 

In Cooperation With: 

Utah Department of Transportation 

Utah Transit Authority 

  



The amended text (italicized) is shown under the heading Oquirrh Connection Study at the end 

of section D.2 below. 



D.2  PLAN REFINEMENT AND SPECIAL STUDIES 
 
OBJECTIVES: 
 
To analyze and recommend long-term policies and short to medium range actions for 
implementation of the Regional Transportation Plan. 
 
To conduct special studies of highway and transit systems as they relate to the Regional 
Transportation Plan and UTA, UDOT or local plans and projects.    
 
To develop complete street standards and tools so that future road projects more fully 
consider non-auto modes and plans in their design. 
 
ANTICIPATED PRODUCTS: 
 

• Mountain Accord Study   
• Complete Streets Toolbox and Outreach   
• Utah Collaborative Active Transportation Study (UCATS) Phase II  
• Wasatch Front Central Corridor Study 
• Park and Ride Master Plan 
• Redwood Road Corridor Traffic, Transit and Land Use Study   
• Southwest Salt Lake County Transit Study  
• Sandy/South Jordan Circulator  
• TRAX Operational and Capacity Improvements Study 
• 5 Year Bus Service Plan 
• Core Transit Network Study 
• Commuter Rail Study 
• Joint Projects Studies 
• Foothill Study  
• Street Connectivity Study 
• Other Planning Studies 

 
BACKGROUND:           
                                             
Mountain Accord Study 
In 2009 Envision Utah in partnership with Salt Lake County studied the future of canyons east 
of Salt Lake Valley in a study called Wasatch Canyons Tomorrow.  As part of the study, they 
held two public hearings and administered an on-line survey on a range of policy strategies.  
Among the recommendations from the study was the exploration of public transit service 
improvements to the Wasatch Canyons.  In October 2011, Salt Lake County and Utah Transit 
Authority signed an agreement to conduct the Mountain Transportation Study.  Salt Lake 
County managed this project in partnership with the US Forest Service, UTA, WFRC, and 
UDOT.  The project consisted of three distinct studies:  1) a parking study, 2) a transportation 
feasibility study for Big and Little Cottonwood Canyons, and 3) a transportation feasibility 
study for Millcreek Canyon, all of which were completed in 2012. 
 
In early 2014 the Mountain Accord Program Charter was signed by local and regional elected 
officials, State legislators, state and regional transportation agencies, special interest groups 



and our federal partners with the US Forest Service, and both the Federal Transit and 
Highway  Administrations.  The goals and principles established were to participate in true 
collaboration to enhance regional transportation systems, protect the environment and 
natural resources, strengthen the regional economy and ensure high quality recreational 
experiences.  During 2014 and 2015 considerable public outreach was conducted. 
 
In July 2015 the Accord was signed by a large cross section of elected officials, state agencies 
and local and regional representatives.  The Accord set into motion the current projects taking 
place along and within the central Wasatch, including: land exchange (private lands for public 
lands) within Big and Little Cottonwood Canyons, a Federal Lands designation for the Central 
Wasatch, an I-80 corridor study from Salt Lake City to Park City and US 40, and a 
Transportation Planning, Engineering and GIS Mapping Study.     
 
Complete Streets Toolbox Development and Outreach 
Complete Streets is a concept to ensure that all users are considered each time a street 
investment is made, to guide jurisdictions in making context sensitive decisions, and to aid in 
the economical development of an integrated, multi-modal transportation system.   “Complete 
Streets” help provide regional mobility by providing a variety of interconnected transportation 
choices, which is a Wasatch Choice for 2040 Growth Principle.   
 
In August 2011, regional leaders in Complete Streets efforts met for the first time to coordinate 
efforts and identify the mission and next steps for Complete Streets efforts in the region.  The 
mission of WFRC Complete Street efforts is to collaborate to provide education, technical 
assistance, identification of funding options, and a framework of local and regional actions 
that will encourage balanced accommodation of all users within the transportation network.   
 
Utah Collaborative Active Transportation Study (UCATS) 
The purpose of this project has been to develop a unified plan and strategy to address the 
current transportation system’s “gaps” and challenges for bicyclists and pedestrians.  The 
project seeks to identify funding sources for bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure.  A large-
scale, long-term investment in an active transportation network would increase mobility, 
enhance connectivity both generally and to transit stations, increase transportation options, 
and promote increased health and community livability.  The Utah Transit Authority, the Utah 
Department of Transportation, and WFRC are combining resources for this project to study 
active transportation.  Phase 1 of the study developed a regional “backbone” bicycle network 
and identified 25 priority active transportation infrastructure projects.  

Wasatch Front Central Corridor Study 
The idea for an I-15/ FrontRunner corridor long-term mobility study grew from a multi-agency 
recognition that solutions to maintaining and improving mobility in the vicinity of I-15 will take 
some combination of creative, innovative, and perhaps expensive solutions.  It also stems 
from awareness of the incredible significance of this corridor for regional mobility and the 
Wasatch Front economy overall.  Given the significant mobility challenges facing the I-15/ 
FrontRunner corridor, it makes sense for WFRC, MAG, UDOT, and UTA to continue a shared 
approach for resolving these challenges.  The study would inform the 2019 WFRC (and 
potentially MAG) RTP, and more detailed plans from UDOT, UTA, and potentially other 
stakeholders (cities, Salt Lake County, etc.). 

Park and Ride Master Plan   



The Park & Ride Master Plan document includes counts and demand to address monitoring, 
impacts on air quality, coordination with land use and TOD, asset management, potential 
shared parking arrangements, and to make capital development, safety and security, and 
policy recommendations. This effort will support Wasatch Choice for 2040 land use, transit 
network and accessibility. 
 
Redwood Road Corridor Traffic, Transit and Land Use Study  
The Redwood Road corridor is a major north-south arterial corridor in central Salt Lake 
County.  Significant transit ridership and traffic volumes warrant an especially integrated 
approach to determining transportation solutions. 
 
Southwest Salt Lake County Transit Study 
A feasibility study began in 2010 to identify a transit project to serve South Jordan, Herriman, 
Riverton, and Draper that would create a connection between the Daybreak TRAX station 
and the Draper FrontRunner station. Based on the results of the feasibility study, a more 
detailed study began in 2013 to identify an alignment for the project. The Southwest Salt Lake 
County Transit project included a market study, telephone surveys, WFRC ridership 
modeling, a funding analysis, and a traffic study for the western terminus, refinement of the 
alignments and project purpose & need, and determining federal requirements for corridor 
preservation. Progress in 2015 and early 2016 for the project focused on public open houses 
and preserving the corridor. The cities involved in the project worked to adopt the alignment 
through resolutions and incorporate it into each city’s Transportation Master Plan. In addition, 
numerous open houses were held to inform and gather comment from the public. 
 
Sandy/South Jordan Circulator 
In 2015, UTA, in cooperation with Sandy City and the City of South Jordan, completed a 15-
month circulator study to examine transportation needs within an area of both Sandy and 
South Jordan that included the Sandy Expo TRAX station, Sandy Civic Center TRAX station, 
the South Jordan FrontRunner station, and the River Park Corporate Center. The results of 
the study recommended two alignments, one bus or streetcar option and one bus-only option. 
 
TRAX Operational and Capacity Improvements Study  
Following an unprecedented expansion in TRAX light rail infrastructure and service that was 
completed in 2013, UTA was able to track the performance of the service for two years without 
the influence of construction and uncertain effects of expansion. At the same time, long range 
plans continue to include additional light rail extensions. UTA's light rail business unit 
requested help from the planning department to analyze capacity and load distribution. 
Subsequently, the performance data suggested that analysis on ridership and reliability were 
also needed. Budget constraints required this work to be done internally. 
 
5 Year Bus Service Plan 
UTA is conducting an evaluation of all services in order to define service standards and 
improve the productivity and efficiency of all UTA services.  This evaluation will be utilized to 
create a 5 year specific service plan for bus services. 
  



Core Network Study 
Following the Network Study that recommended a matrix of high frequency bus service - 
called Bus Plus - many of the identified corridors were included in WFRC's 2015 RTP as 
"Enhanced Bus".  The Service Planning Group began looking into what that service would 
look like. The Service Planners convened a week long retreat to define what they came to 
call the Core Network, which is similar but not exactly the same as the RTP nor the Network 
Study results.   
 
Commuter Rail Study 
Through the Next Tier meeting process, the commuter rail business unit provided a list of 
needs and desires for the improvement of FrontRunner operations. Among them were: 
customer information, fare collection, station improvements, train length capacity expansion, 
double-tracking for 15-minute headways and maintenance, reduced travel time, and service 
expansion to additional cities and businesses. Instead of looking at each request separately, 
planning and commuter rail thought a holistic approach to understand how these issues are 
related and how they might be implemented in phases with respect to time was the most 
comprehensive and efficient way to proceed. 
 
Joint Projects Studies 
The Wasatch Front Regional Council (WFRC), Mountainland Association of Governments 
(MAG), Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT) and the Utah Transit Authority (UTA)  
each recognize that the long and short range transportation plans and projects across the 
Wasatch Front often require significant cooperation and coordination among their respective 
agencies. In 2012 the agencies cooperatively agreed to establish the Joint Projects 
Committee (JPC). The JPC was organized and meets regularly to provide a forum for 
discussion of all transportation planning and programming issues impacting the Wasatch 
Front and from those discussions emerge areas of common need. 
 
In 2013 a legal agreement called the “Joint Projects Master Collaborative Planning 
Agreement” was signed by all parties to give the committee a vehicle for putting financial 
resources toward these joint projects. As new projects and budgets are agreed upon, 
amendments to that agreement are developed and signed by the parties.  These have 
included items such as joint multi-modal corridor planning, before-after studies, joint 
performance measures, first and last mile evaluations, active transportation and street design 
criteria. 
 
Foothill Study 
Salt Lake City, UDOT, University of Utah and UTA have come together to evaluate 
transportation options for the Foothill corridor.  Salt Lake City is leading the study.  The study 
area extends from the University of Utah to I-80.   
 
Street Connectivity Study 
The purpose of this study is to examine the benefits of street connectivity and summarize the 
results to inform decision-makers and stakeholders how street connectivity can benefit their 
communities, both at a local and regional level, and to identify opportunities and provide 
recommendations on how to implement elements of connectivity into their 
communities. WFRC, the Mountainland Association of Governments, the Utah Department 
of Transportation, and the Utah Transit Authority are combining resources for this project. A 



request for proposals was released in November 2015 to solicit a consultant to complete the 
Street Connectivity Study. 
 
WORK STATEMENT:                                                            
 
Mountain Accord Study 
The work is following Federal Transit Administration NEPA processes, and may result in one 
or more federal and local actions. 
 
Wasatch Front Regional Council, in partnership with the Mountain Accord Executive Board, 
has procured the Program Director for Phase II of the Mountain Accord Process and is 
responsible for administration of the Program Director’s contract.  This position and the 
associated work/staff of the position will assure timely progression of the program.  The 
Program Director is responsible for managing and coordinating Phase II of the Mountain 
Accord in coordination with the Mountain Accord Executive Board and under the direction of 
the Mountain Accord Management Team.   
 
Required responsibilities of the Program Director include:  Development of program schedule, 
budget and overall organizational structure for the Accord;  development of an “organizational 
strategic plan”;  strategic planning on all upcoming projects and Mountain Accord elements;  
program-wide public engagement and relations;  development of financial resources for 
Mountain Accord activities;  internal and external conflict resolution; coordination of legislative 
responsibilities required for land trades and protections; and economic, environmental and 
transportation analyses.  The work may be performed by the Program Director, 
subcontractors, or other contracted entities. 
 
WFRC will participate as a member of the Mountain Accord Management Team, and provide 
technical staff assistance to the program.  WFRC will also continue to provide oversight and 
staff support to the development and management of the Mountain Travel Model during 
Phase II. 

During the first half of FY 2017, a Phase II Transportation Study of the Cottonwood Canyons 
will develop and recommend short and long-term solutions to the transportation issues facing 
the canyons.  The short-term study is tasked to identify, analyze and recommend solutions to 
the immediate transportation needs of the Cottonwood Canyons, solutions that could be 
implemented during the winter 2016/2017, summer 2017, and over the next 5-10 
years.  Recommendations for long-term solutions would likely be a range of options that could 
be included in the 2050 Regional Transportation Plan.  Specific tasks include evaluation of 
BCC and LCC connection options, evaluation of parking solutions, including to serve the 
Parley’s Canyon corridor, and development of a framework for data collection and evaluation 
to aid in decision making and to track performance of implemented solutions.  This study will 
be coordinated with other Phase II work currently taking place. 

Complete Streets Toolbox Development and Outreach 
The purpose of this project is to develop a web-based, interactive street design dialogue tool 
to surmount barriers inherent to street design communications. The project is to be built in 
three phases.  The current phase is underway and is scheduled to be unveiled on May 20th, 
2014.  This first phase includes creation of initial tool management, best practice 



recommendation, and cross-section building capabilities within the tool.  The second phase 
has been funding and will likely commence shortly after May 20th.  The second phase will 
build on these initial capabilities and allow built cross-sections to be drawn in longitudinal plan 
views upon Google Earth.  The third phase is anticipated to, among other things, continue to 
improve the design recommendations capability of and ease of use of the tool with particular 
attention to intersection design.   
    
Utah Collaborative Active Transportation Study (UCATS) 

A second phase of the UCATS is anticipated to begin in 2014 and may continue into 2015.  
This phase will likely focus on preparing projects identified in phase 1 to be able to move 
forward.   
 
Wasatch Front Central Corridor Study 
The primary study area will be Salt Lake County, between Redwood Road and 700 East.  The 
secondary study area will be large enough to incorporate regionally affected roadway and 
transit facilities and induced land use impacts.  The principal goal of the study is to develop a 
balanced, integrated transportation solution for the mobility needs in the I-15/ FrontRunner 
corridor.  Strategies to be considered include: 

• Road capacity 
• Transit capacity 
• Technology 
• Surface street connections 
• Last mile improvements 
• Policy strategies, including but not limited to, pricing and acceptable levels of 

congestion 
 
Land use impacts on will be considered both within the corridor and those that may be induced 
from major capacity improvements.  Land use changes that work with and maximize 
transportation investmenst will also be explored. 
 
A policy and technical committee has been formed.  UDOT is managing the project on behalf 
of all the agencies involved.   
 
This effort was awarded a TIGER Planning grant, totaling over $800,000.  This brings the 
project budget between agencies to $1.5 million. 
 
The project began in calendar year 2015 and is scheduled for conclusion by end of calendar 
year 2016.  The effort will be closely coordinated with the regional transportation plan process 
and key findings will inform efforts of all participating agencies. 
 
Park and Ride Master Plan   
The plan document was originally drafted in 2014 year end, with ongoing utilization continuing 
through 2015. An update will be performed in 2016 taking into account current and past 
utilization and origin/destination data based upon license plate scans. This includes 
coordinating with UTA Police to obtain license plate scan data at all UTA rail Park & Ride lots 
and analyzing the data to inform recommendations and findings in the Park & Ride Master 
Plan. 



 
Redwood Road Corridor Traffic, Transit and Land Use Study  
The scope of work for the Redwood Road Transportation Study has been finalized, in which 
the intention is to analyze and identify the transportation needs for the entire corridor that 
includes transit enhancements, roadway improvements, and active transportation 
opportunities through 2040.  The partners involved in the study include UTA, UDOT, WFRC, 
Salt Lake County, Salt Lake City, West Valley City, Taylorsville, West Jordan, South Jordan, 
and Sandy City.  The outcome of the study will be the identification of an inclusive Preferred 
Transportation Alternative for the corridor and next steps for short-term and long-term 
implementation including phasing and project development.  The Redwood Road Corridor 
study is expected to kick-off in early spring 2016 with an anticipated completion date 
sometime in the summer of 2017. 
 
Southwest Salt Lake County Transit Study 
UTA work will continue during FY 2017 to complete city resolutions for all project cities and 
complete corridor preservation on the affected alignment. 
 
Sandy/South Jordan Circulator 
The next steps for the Sandy/South Jordan Circulator project in  FY 2017 will be to evaluate 
the most cost-effective routes and examine funding options for the preferred alternative(s). 
 
TRAX Operational and Capacity Improvements Study  
UTA's light rail business unit was able to hire a business analyst to provide internal 
information on ridership and reliability using data that is regularly collected. Therefore, in FY 
2017, this planning work will concentrate more on developing draft purpose and needs for 
projects in the long range plans. They include, but are not limited to: 400 South Connector 
and its relationship to Airport to University service, additional north south capacity in 
downtown Salt Lake City and its relationship to streetcar, and the Draper extension to Utah 
County. 
 
5 Year Bus Service Plan 
Based on results from development of service standards and a comprehensive system 
analysis, UTA will develop a Service Improvement Plan for the years between 2017 and 2020.  
The Service Improvement Plan will define service alignments and service levels for all UTA 
services.  This plan will be based on existing resources and will prioritize service 
improvements based on a scale of high, medium and low scores.  Criteria for the scale will 
also be developed during FY 2017. 
 
Core Network Study 
This study will analyze existing conditions such as ridership, reliability, travel time, stops, and 
markets and prioritize corridors for improved bus service. Additional analysis will be 
performed to determine best stop locations, TSP implementation and/or queue jump 
locations, and ridership gains for what will become UTA's core (committed) bus network. 
Finally, costs, vehicle requirements, branding and phasing will be determined to assure the 
system can be programmed into future funding plans.  Anticipated completion date is within 
2016. 
  



Commuter Rail Study 
This study will evaluate several potential improvements to FrontRunner service that have 
been identified and how they might be implemented in phases.  UTA has budgeted local funds 
for the study in 2016.  A scope of work will be finalized and funding partners will be secured 
in order to proceed with the project.  A package is expected to be produced for solicitation of 
proposals for completion of the study. 
 
Joint Projects Studies 
Potential joint projects studies during FY 2017 include a Joint Corridors Study, Data 
Management and GIS, Performance Based Planning and Management, and a study to 
examine the Draper to Lehi TRAX extension.  Other projects may be included during the 
program period as they are identified and resources are available. 
 
Foothill Study 
The stakeholders organized a project steering committee to develop project goals.  They have 
defined eight goals for the project: 1. Preserve and enhance communities along the corridor; 
2. Move people through the whole corridor; 3. Enable access to destinations by all modes 
along and across the corridor; 4. Contribute to complete transportation networks; 5. Manage 
transportation demand by providing options; 6. Enhance safety for all users; 7. Develop a 
strategy for broadly acceptable and achievable change; and 8. Create an ongoing inclusive 
process. These corridor goals and the performance measures will be used to help the parties 
determine corridor opportunities and evaluate potential future projects.  The focus of the study 
is to identify improvements that can be implemented in the next 5 to 10 years.  
 
Street Connectivity Study 
The Study will quantify the benefits of street connectivity and summarize the results to inform 
decision-makers and stakeholders how street connectivity can benefit their communities, both 
at a local and regional level. The Study will also provide a guideline to implement elements 
of connectivity into local communities. In the spirit of assisting and partnering with 
municipalities, this study includes case studies of three communities – Layton, Tooele, and 
Lehi. The case studies are intended to assess the current conditions and barriers to street 
connectivity. For each case study, there will be a review of the current state of the street 
network, identification of opportunities to connect the network, an analysis of connectivity 
performance measures, and a cost-benefit analysis of implementing greater connectivity. 
WFRC will provide the project management for the street connectivity study. However, all 
major decisions will be made by a committee consisting of representatives from MAG, UDOT, 
UTA, and WFRC. Anticipated completion of the study is fall 2016. 
 
Other Planning Studies 
It is recognized that the need for other planning studies may arise in FY 2017.  For example, 
analysis of operational improvements along certain corridors may occur.  There may also be 
studies of transit options in additional corridors.  Other possibilities are smaller transit projects 
such as for standalone park and ride lots, spot highway improvements, or complete street 
elements.  Consultant assistance may be required in some of these studies. 
 
Oquirrh Connection Study 
This study will focus on evaluating the engineering and financial feasibility of constructing a 
new or improved roadway connection between southwest Salt Lake County and the Tooele 
Valley.  The feasibility analysis will also include evaluation of transit, freight, and active 



transportation usage, and will examine up to three possible alignments.  The study will involve 
a high-level travel demand analysis and assessment of transportation, land use, economic, 
recreational, and environmental impacts and benefits.  An evaluation of short- term 
improvements that could be made to existing facilities will also be accomplished.  A consultant 
will conduct most of the technical analysis and report preparation, guided by both a technical 
committee and a policy committee, with representation from local governments, WFRC, MAG, 
UDOT, UTA, and other stakeholders.  The study is scheduled to be completed by the end of 
the fiscal year and consultant management will be provided by WFRC staff. 
 
RESPONSIBLE AGENCIES: 
 
WFRC, UTA, UDOT 
 



DATE:   October 20, 2016  
AGENDA ITEM: 5a 
SUBJECT:  ACTION: Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and RTP Goals 
PREPARED BY: Ted Knowlton 
 
WFRC uses Council-adopted Regional Goals to inform the work of the organization. For 
example, Goals will underpin the evaluation criteria that are used to develop the Wasatch 
Choice 2050 Vision and Regional Transportation Plan.  Regional Goals also inform 
programming of WFRC-administered funds that are part of the Transportation Improvement 
Program. The Council and Regional Growth Committee (RGC) have been discussing draft 
Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and RTP Regional Goals over the last three meetings.  In the 
October meeting, Council is being asked to adopt Regional Goals.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed Regional Goals are attached.  These goals are intended to be useful for any 
community or organization that wants to be a partner in the Wasatch Choice for 2050 Vision.  In 
other words, these goals are potentially not just for WFRC, and are written accordingly; they are 
broader than previous transportation plan goals in that they address issues that relate to many 
aspects of community development. 
 
Here is how the proposed goals were developed: 

• In 2015, a list of desired sub-regional outcomes was presented to cities and counties 
during the first round of small-area meetings for prioritization and refinement. 

• This list of desired outcomes was compared to past WFRC Goals, the Wasatch Choice 
for 2040 Growth Principles, federal transportation legislation (MAP-21 and the FAST 
Act), and the goals of partner transportation entities, including UDOT and UTA.  
Language was then modified to improve consistency.   

• This working set of goals was discussed by the Council in May 2016.  They have also 
been reviewed and refined by RGC.  

• Since May, feedback has also been sought on the Goals from the public and regional 
stakeholders.  This includes feedback from RGC Technical Advisory Committees, 
UDOT, UTA, MAG (our counterpart in in Utah County), and Envision Utah. 

 
The proposed goals reflect all of the feedback obtained in the above steps. 
 
In the Council meeting, members will be asked to: 
 

1) Review the proposed set of Regional Goals. 
2) Consider in general how WFRC would use the goals, 
3) Take action to adopt the goals. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Regional Growth Committee and WFRC staff recommends that the Council take action “to 
adopt the Wasatch Choice 2050 Goals as presented.” 
 
CONTACT PERSON:   
Ted Knowlton (WFRC) (801) 363-4250 x1201 or ted@wfrc.org 
 
EXHIBIT: 
Proposed Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and RTP Goals 

mailto:ted@wfrc.org


 
 

PROPOSED REGIONAL GOALS 
October 2016 

 
Wasatch Choice 2050 is the shared vision for the Wasatch Front as well as the Region’s Transportation Plan. Built upon 
community values, and with extensive partner, stakeholder, and public input, it is a blueprint for growth that supports 
regional mobility, a healthy environment, a thriving economy, and overall quality of life. 
 
The following goals for Wasatch Choice 2050 can inform decisions made by Wasatch Choice 2050 partners, including 
transportation agencies, local governments and other public entities, and private sector and community-based 
organizations. Partners can work to achieve these goals within their individual community or area of influence, while 
also considering the health of the region. 
 
The Wasatch Front Regional Council will utilize these goals to inform organizational activities, including the development 
of transportation, land use and economic development plans and projects. WFRC will measure the performance and 
impact of various plans and projects on several scales: on the region as a whole; on various subregions; and on 
vulnerable communities within the region. 
 
Draft Goal 

 

Livable and healthy communities 

 

Access to economic and educational opportunities 

 

Manageable and reliable traffic conditions 

 

Quality transportation choices 

 

Safe, user-friendly streets 

 

Housing choices and affordable living expenses 

 

Fiscally efficient communities and infrastructure 

 

Ample parks, open spaces, and recreational opportunities 

 

A sustainable environment including water, agricultural, and other natural resources 

 

Clean air 

 



 

DATE:   October 20, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM: 5b 
SUBJECT:  Information: Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and RTP Scenarios  
PREPARED BY: Ted Knowlton 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and Regional Transportation Plan (WC2050 and 2019 RTP) is the 
region’s shared vision for coordinated growth and infrastructure. The process to develop the 
WC2050 and 2019 RTP spans four years and is a collaborative effort of local communities, 
stakeholders, and transportation agencies (among others) that is convened and technically 
supported by WFRC.  
 
In the spring of 2016, WFRC met with local communities in the region, UDOT, UTA, and a variety 
of stakeholders to gather transportation project ideas and inter-related growth concepts out to 
2050, in order to start developing the Wasatch Choice 2050 Vision and Regional Transportation 
Plan.   
 
At the October meeting, we will highlight the key geographical themes (ideas that can be put on 
a map) we heard from local communities, transportation partners, and stakeholders.  We will also 
put forward draft next steps including the next round of sub-regional small-area meetings.  In 
2017, the small-area meetings will explore scenarios: mapped depictions of transportation 
infrastructure, growth, and open space for the year 2050.   
 
These scenarios will also include a variety of evaluation criteria that relate to the proposed 
Regional Wasatch Choice 2050 Goals.  Scenario performance will be understood from a sub-
regional and a regional basis.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
This item is for information only and no action is required. 
 
CONTACT PERSON:  
Ted Knowlton (WFRC) 801-363-4250 x1201 or ted@wfrc.org 
 
 
 

mailto:ted@wfrc.org


 
 

 
DATE:   October 20, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM: 6a  
SUBJECT:  ACTION: Board Modifications to the 2017-2022 TIP 
PREPARED BY: Ben Wuthrich 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Wasatch Front Regional Council (WFRC) has received a request from UDOT to modify the 
current 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) with the attached list of projects.  
This modification requires action from the Regional Council and the Transportation Commission.   
The requested modification is listed with the attached resolution. 
     
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
WFRC staff recommends that the Regional Council make a motion “to approve the attached 
resolution to modify the 2017-2022 TIP as requested.” 
 
CONTACT PERSON:   
 
Ben Wuthrich (801) 363-4230 ext 1121  
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Resolution adopting Amendment One to the 2017-2022 TIP 
 



 
 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE WASATCH FRONT REGIONAL COUNCIL 

AMENDING THE 2017 - 2022 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

                         

WHEREAS, the Wasatch Front Regional Council is the officially designated Metropolitan Planning 

Organization for the Salt Lake/ West Valley and the Ogden/ Layton Urbanized Areas and, 

as such, has the responsibility for developing a Transportation Improvement Program, and 

 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program is to include all federally funded highway and 

transit projects scheduled for the next six years, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Transportation, the State Transportation Commission, the Utah 

Transit Authority, and the Wasatch Front Regional Council and its local jurisdictions 

desire to amend the 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to include and 

/ or modify the projects on the attached project description list, and 

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Transportation Metropolitan Planning Regulations Paragraph 

450.324(a) requires that “the TIP . . . be updated at least every four years, and be approved 

by the MPO and the Governor,” and  

 

WHEREAS, the Statewide Air Quality Implementation Plan includes traffic control measures for 

reducing air pollutant emissions for the Salt Lake/ West Valley and the Ogden/ Layton 

Urbanized Areas and budgets for mobile source emissions, and  

                     

WHEREAS, the projects included in the proposed Transportation Improvement Program amendment 

are either included in Phase 1 of the Regional Transportation Plan or are not regionally 

significant, or are included in the 2017-2022 TIP or are exempt projects that do not need 

to be reviewed for air quality conformity and consistency with the State Implementation 

Plan according to 40 CFR Part 93.126 Table 2 Exempt Projects, and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Transportation Improvement Program amendment had a public review and 

comment opportunity at the Regional Council meeting on October 27, 2016, and all 

comments were carefully considered, 

                      

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the Wasatch Front Regional Council 

 

(1) Approves Amendment One to the 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program as 

attached, 

 

(2) Finds that the TIP conforms to and is consistent with the State Implementation Plan for 

Salt Lake, Davis, western Weber, and southern Box Elder Counties, and 

 

(3) Finds that the development of the Transportation Improvement Program is based on a 

currently certified transportation planning process. 

 

 

_______________________________________           ________________________________________  

Mayor Tom Dolan, Chairman Andrew S. Gruber 

Wasatch Front Regional Council                              Executive Director 

               Wasatch Front Regional Council                         

 

Date:  October 27, 2016 

                                                



County Sponsor Facility PIN Project Location Concept/ Type of Improvement Funding Source
Project 

Estimated Cost

Currently 

Funded 

Amount

Action Funding Amount Year

CMAQ_PM 2.5 WFRC    

(Congestion Mitigation/ Air Quality 

(CMAQ) - WFRC)

$2,321,229

CMAQ_WFRC    

(Congestion Mitigation/ Air Quality 

(CMAQ) - WFRC)

$725,000

STP_FLX_ST    

(STP Flexible (Any Area) Statewide)
$1,495,271

STP_URB_O/L     

(Surface Transportation Program - 

Urban Area Ogden/ Layton 

(WFRC))

$1,325,000

STP_URB_O/L     

(Surface Transportation Program - 

Urban Area Ogden/ Layton 

(UDOT))

$0
Additional 

Funding
$1,100,000

STP_FLX_ST    

(STP Flexible (Any Area) Statewide)
$1,300,000

STP_URB_O/L     

(Surface Transportation Program - 

Urban Area Ogden/ Layton 

(UDOT))

$0
Additional 

Funding
$1,500,000

STP_FLX_ST    

(STP Flexible (Any Area) Statewide)
$6,304,320

STP_URB_O/L     

(Surface Transportation Program - 

Urban Area Ogden/ Layton 

(UDOT))

$0
Additional 

Funding
$1,500,000

12297
Hillfield Road (SR-232); I-15 to Fisher 

Highway (SR-193)

Rehabilitation work to auxiliary 

lanes between the ramps 
Davis UDOT

2017

The additional funds are to cover the cost of additional rehabilitation work on the auxiliary lanes between the ramps.  The additional funds come from the cost savings on the I-

15, South Davis Operational Upgrades Project.

$7,804,320 2017

The additional funds are to cover the cost of accelerating the project by replacing segments of the concrete pavement with Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) to complete the project 

before winter.  The additional funds come from the cost savings on the I-15, South Davis Operational Upgrades Project.

Weber/ 

Davis
UDOT I-15 13470

SR-232

I-15; at SR-97 (5600 South), SR-108 

(Antelope Dr.), SR-103 (650 North), SR-

193 (Fisher Hwy)

Rehabilitation work to auxiliary 

lanes between the ramps 

2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) (Amendment One)

Board Modification

Additional Scope and Funding

Ogden/ Layton Urban Area

Davis $6,966,500  2017, 2018

The additional funds are to cover the cost of increased rehabilitation work on the off ramps and to cover the cost of the redesign of the Main Street intersection to accommodate 

the concerns of several businesses.  The additional funds come from the cost savings on the I-15, South Davis Operational Upgrades Project.

UDOT SR-103 11092
650 North (SR-103) & I-15 Interchange/ 

Intersections

Intersection Improvements and 

Ramp Rehabilitation Work

$2,800,000



County Sponsor Facility PIN Project Location Concept/ Type of Improvement Funding Source
Project 

Estimated Cost

Currently 

Funded 

Amount

Action Funding Amount Year

ST_GF_ CHN     

(General Fund - Critical Highway 

Needs)

$9,500,000

ST_TIF_SB229     

(State Transportation Investment 

Fund - SB229 (2012))

$0
Additional 

Funding
$1,500,000

ST_TIF    

(State Transportation Investment 

Fund)

$5,000,000

County Sponsor Facility PIN Project Location Concept/ Type of Improvement Funding Source
Project 

Estimated Cost

Currently 

Funded 

Amount

Action Funding Amount Year

County Sponsor Facility PIN Project Location Concept/ Type of Improvement Funding Source
Project 

Estimated Cost

Currently 

Funded 

Amount

Action Funding Amount Year

$0

$0

$16,000,000 2017

The additional funds are to complete the EIS.  The additional funds come from the cost savings on the I-15, South Davis Operational Upgrades Project.

2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) (Amendment One)

Board Modification

Additional Funding

Ogden/ Layton Urban Area

Davis UDOT
West Davis 

Corridor

$1,300,000 2017

The reasons for the increase in costs are: complexity of the maintenance of traffic due to construction phasing, additional traffic and safety items added during final design, 

additional bridge rehabilitation items added during final design and additional costs for preliminary engineering and construction engineering due to the project complexity. 

The funding for this additional project cost is available from current project efficiencies.

NHPP_BR    

(National Highway Performance 

Program - Bridge On System)

$800,000
Additional 

Funding
$500,000

Salt Lake/ West Valley Urban Area

Salt Lake UDOT US-89 11419
Beck Street (US-89) Ramp to I-15 

Northbound

Bridge Rehabilitation and 

Maintenance

This recommendation is for UDOT to transfer $1.5 million to Bluffdale City to partially pay for expenses they have incurred in constructing Porter Rockwell Boulevard. 

UDOT will continue to work to reimburse the City an additional $7,058,944, on or before the construction of a bridge over the Jordan River, on this route. 

Funding 

Transfer
2017

Porter 

Rockwell 

Blvd

New
Porter Rockwell (PRB); Redwood 

Road (SR-68) to 14600 South (SR-140)

Partial reimbursement for work 

Bluffdale has completed on 

Porter Rockwell Boulevard

Funding Transfer

Salt Lake/ West Valley Urban Area

Salt Lake UDOT
STP_FLX_ST    

(STP Flexible (Any Area) Statewide)
$1,500,000$8,558,944

7176 West Davis Corridor West Davis Corridor EIS



County Sponsor Facility PIN Project Location Concept/ Type of Improvement Funding Source
Project 

Estimated Cost

Currently 

Funded 

Amount

Action Funding Amount Year

New 

Funding
$70,634 2016

UDOT TAP Contribution $70,634, Local Contribution $0.00, Total Project Cost $70,634

UDOT TAP Contribution $105,695, Local Contribution $40,000, Total Project Cost $145,695

Davis Farmington
Frontage 

Road
New

Frontage Road Bike/ Ped Improvements 

Various Locations - (west & east side)

Construct Section of Missing 

Bike/ Pedestrian Facility and 

Sidewalk

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

$70,634 $0

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

$145,695 $0

UDOT TAP Contribution $197,000, Local Contribution $25,000, Total Project Cost $222,000

New
Forest Street Railroad Pedestrian 

Crossing

New 

Funding
$105,695 2018

New 

Funding
$192,750 2019

UDOT TAP Contribution $192,750, Local Contribution $64,250, Total Project Cost $257,000

Davis Kaysville

Utah State 

Botanical 

Center

New

Utah State Botanical Center Trail     

(Ponds Park to north end of Botanical 

Center)

Pave a section of roadbase 

facility to connect existing 

sidewalks

UDOT TAP Contribution $56,250, Local Contribution $18,750, Total Project Cost $75,000

Davis
North Salt 

Lake

Orchard 

Drive 
New

Orchard Drive sidewalk -   

North Segment     

(Center Street to 83 South)

Construct Section of Missing 

Bike/ Pedestrian Facility

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

$257,000 $0

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

$75,000 $0
New 

Funding
$56,250 2018

New 

Funding
$197,000 2016

UDOT TAP Contribution $33,295, Local Contribution $11,095, Total Project Cost $44,390

Box Elder Brigham City Forest Street

Davis
North Salt 

Lake

Redwood 

Road
New

Redwood Road east side path    

(south of 1100 North for ~ 575 ft)

Construct Section of Missing 

Bike/ Pedestrian Facility

Construct Section of Missing 

Bike/ Pedestrian Facility

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

$222,000 $0

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

$44,390 $0
New 

Funding
$33,295 2017Davis Kaysville Main Street New

Kaysville Main Street -     

(Nichols Rd to ~ 700 South)

Construct Section of Missing 

Sidewalk

$81,000 $0
New 

Funding
$60,750 2017

UDOT TAP Contribution $60,750, Local Contribution $20,250, Total Project Cost $81,000

Davis
North Salt 

Lake

Redwood 

Road
New

Redwood Road west side path    

(south of 1100 North for ~ 600 ft)

Construct Section of Missing 

Bike/ Pedestrian Facility

UDOT R1 TAP     

(UDOT Region One Transportation 

Alternatives Program)

2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) (Amendment One)

Board Modification

New Projects

Ogden/ Layton Urban Area



 

DATE:   October 20, 2016    
AGENDA ITEM: 8  
SUBJECT:  Information: Air Quality Meeting Format Recommendation for 2017   
PREPARED BY: Kip Billings 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In August 2008, the Wasatch Front Regional Council created the Air Quality Committee (AQC) 
as a subcommittee to the Regional Growth Committee (RGC).  The RGC specified that the AQC 
is to be chaired by an elected official appointed by the RGC.  Other members of the AQC 
include executive level representatives from the Utah Air Quality Board, Division of Air Quality, 
Utah Department of Transportation, Utah Transit Authority, and other WFRC members (in 
practice there has been at least one WFRC member from Weber, Davis, and Salt Lake 
Counties).  The August 2009 stated purpose of the AQC is: 
 1. Recommend effective transportation strategies for improving air quality 
 2. Inform the Council about emerging air quality issues 
 3. Cooperate with the Division of Air Quality in developing State Implementation Plans 
 4. Inform the public on WFRC transportation-related air quality improvement activities 
 5. Keep informed on air quality issues and control strategies that are not directly   
     related to transportation. 
 
Changing Needs: 
At the time the AQC was created there was not a forum available to WFRC members to 
adequately address air quality needs.  Since that time, a number of forums and programs have 
been established that are well equipped to address air quality strategies including Utah Clean 
Air (UCAIR), the Clean Air Action Team, the Salt Lake City Office of Sustainability, and the 
UDOT Travelwise program to name a few.  With the advent of these air quality oriented groups, 
the primary function of the AQC has gradually shifted to providing a valuable forum for sharing 
air quality related information.  WFRC also includes air quality impacts as an integral step in the 
analysis of long- and short-range plans and programs.  This consideration of air quality impacts 
is in addition to the air quality conformity analysis required of all transportation plans and 
programs.   For example, the evaluation of alternative scenarios in developing the Regional 
Transportation Plan includes estimation of transportation emissions.  The key objective of the 
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality program, which WFRC is able to administer in its urbanized 
areas, is to improve air quality.    
RECOMMENDATION:  
Given these developments, the AQC is recommending that the issues of air quality impacts and 
changing regulations be shared with a larger audience.  Specifically, the AQC is recommending 
that beginning in 2017 this subcommittee continue as structured with a Chair, Vice Chair and 
designated members.  However, separate meetings of the AQC will only be scheduled as 
needed.  Most air quality information topics would be addressed as a standing item on the RGC 
agenda.  The AQC believes that the stated purpose of the AQC listed above can be fulfilled 
more efficiently and effectively with this recommendation.  Therefore, members of the AQC and 
stakeholders would be invited to the RGC meetings. In addition, the AQC recommends that 
about once a year a relevant presentation on air quality be presented to the full Regional 
Council. Toward the end of 2017, the AQC will meet separately to evaluate how well this 
approach is working and whether modifications are needed. 
 
CONTACT PERSON:  
Kip Billings (WFRC) 363-4230 X 1115 
 
EXHIBIT: None 



WASATCH FRONT REGIONAL COUNCIL 2017 MEETING SCHEDULE 
Regional 
Council 

Regional 
Growth Trans Com Air Quality ATC Budget WFEDD Plan TAC / 

O-L RGC TAC
Trans Com 

 TAC 
January 26 19 tbd 11 25 

February 23 
(new member 
orientation*) 

23 
(new member 
orientation*) 

16  
23 

(new member 
orientation*) 

23 
(new member   
 orientation*) 

23 
(new member 
orientation*) 

27 15 22 

March 23 16 tbd 8 9 29 
April 20 19 
May 25 18 tbd 10 11 22 31 
June 15 14 
July 19 26 
August 24 17 17 tbd 9 28 
September 20 
October 26 19 tbd 11 12 18 
November 16 27 
December 13 

• Regional Council meetings are held on the 4th Thursday (five times a year in Jan, Mar, May, Aug and Oct) at 2:00 p.m.
• Regional Growth (RGC) meetings are held on the 3rd Thursday (five times a year in Jan, Mar, May, Aug and Oct) at 9:30 a.m.
• Trans Com meetings are held on the 3rd Thursday (five times a year in Feb, Apr, June, Aug and Nov) at 2:00 p.m.
• Air Quality (AQC) meetings are held on the 3rd Thursday (five times a year in Jan, Mar, May, Aug and Oct – dates to be determined) at 11:30 a.m.
• Active Transportation (ATC) meetings are held on the 2nd Wednesday (six times a year in Jan, Mar, May, Jun, Aug & Oct) at 8:45 a.m.
• Budget Committee meetings are held three times a year as noted above at 10:00 a.m.
• Wasatch Front Economic Development District (WFEDD) meetings are held quarterly on the 4th Monday at 1:00 p.m.
• RGC TAC: Combined CCP/Salt Lake-West Valley Area (Plan TAC)–8:30 a.m. Location to be determined; Ogden-Layton Area–2:00 p.m. in Clearfield City Hall
• Trans Com TAC: Ogden-Layton Area-10:00 a.m. in Clearfield City Hall; Salt Lake-West Valley Area—2:00 p.m. in the Utah Cultural Celebration Center

** The above meetings will be held in the WFRC office (295 North Jimmy Doolittle Road, Salt Lake City, UT  84116) unless otherwise noted. **

*New member orientation on February 23, 2017 – all new committee members from Regional Council, Regional Growth, Trans Com, Air Quality, Active
Transportation, Budget and Wasatch Front Economic Development District are invited to attend. Time and location to be determined.

11Oct2016.2


	Agenda WFRC Final 27Oct16
	WASATCH FRONT REGIONAL COUNCIL
	Meeting of October 27, 2016
	AGENDA

	Item 1a WFRC Draft Minutes 25Aug2016
	Item 1b FULL Council Financial Report
	Item 1b July Balance Sheet and Check Register
	Item 1b August Balance Sheet and Check Register
	Item 1b September Balance Sheet and Check Register
	Item 1b Council Financial Report
	2016 09 30 Budget_Expense
	2016 09 30 Footnotes to Budget_Expense Report


	Item 2a  Information Community Spotlight South Davis Co
	Item 2b ACTION WFRC Nominating Committee
	Item 4a BOTH Review and Accept Audit Report
	Item 4a ACTION Review and Accept Audit Report
	Item 4a EXHIBIT Audit Report

	Item 4b BOTH ACTION_EXHIBITS FY 2017 BUDGET Amendment
	Item 4b ACTION Public Hearing and Action-Amend FY2016 Budget and UPWP
	Item 4b ALL EXHIBITS FY 2017 BUDGET Amendment
	Item 4b EXHIBIT 1 FY 2017 BUDGET Amendment 1
	Item 4b EXHIBIT 2 2016 Amended Budget Footnotes10 22 15
	Item 4b EXHIBIT 3 Amendment UPWP FY17


	Item 5a BOTH WC2050 Goals
	Item 5a ACTION WC2050 Goals
	Item 5a EXHIBIT WC2050

	Item 5b Information WC2050 Vision and RTP Scenarios
	Item 6a BOTH Approve Board Modifications to 2017-2022 TIP
	Item 6a ACTION Approve Board Modifications to 2017-2022 TIP
	Item 6a EXHIBIT RESOL 2017-2022 amendment One RC

	Item 8 Information Air Quality Meeting Format
	WFRC 2017 MEETING SCHEDULE



